
EQC ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
BOARD OF HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL 

November 10, 2011 
 
 

BUREAU OF LAND AND WASTE MANAGEMENT 
 
 

UST Enforcement 
 
 

1) Order Type and Number: Administrative Order 10-0189-UST 
Order Date: June 23, 2011 
Respondent: Robert and Magdaline Palmer 

d.b.a. Olanta’s Royal Market 
Facility: Olanta’s Royal Market 
Location Address: 113 East Hampton Street, Olanta, SC 
Mailing Address: 2106 Fernleaf Lane, Florence, SC 

29501 
County: Florence 
Previous Orders: 07-0431-UST ($450.00), AO 07-

0617-UST ($3,825.00) 
Permit/ID Number: 14681 
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum 
Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) Section 44-2-
60(A) (Rev. 2002); the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control 
Regulation 61-92.280.70, R.61-92.280.93(a), R.61-92.280.110(c), and 
R.61-92.280.34(c) (Supp. 2010); Consent Order 07-0431-UST, and 
Administrative Order 07-0617-UST.  

 
Summary:  Robert and Magdaline Palmer d.b.a. Olanta’s Royal Market 

(Respondent) owns and operates underground storage tanks (USTs) located in 
Olanta, South Carolina, and has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage 
Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to maintain continuous corrosion 
protection on a temporarily closed UST system; and, after more than twelve 
months of being a temporarily closed system, failure to permanently close the 
UST system; failure to provide financial responsibility; failure to provide records 
to the Department upon request; failure to pay annual UST registration fees for 
fiscal years 2009-2012; failure to pay a civil penalty in accordance with the terms 
of Consent Order 07-0431-UST; and, failure to comply with the terms of 
Administrative Order 07-0617-UST.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: submit a completed Certificate of 

Financial Responsibility and proof of mechanism; submit a UST Tank/Sludge 
Disposal form prior to permanent closure of the UST system; permanently close 
the UST system; submit a UST Closure and Assessment Report; pay annual UST 



registration fees in the amount of one thousand, eighty-nine dollars ($1,089.00); 
and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of twenty-three thousand, four hundred 
twenty-five dollars ($23,425.00).   

 
 

Solid Waste Enforcement 
 

         
2) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-27-SW 

Order Date: September 29, 2011 
Respondents: Chester County 
Facility: Chester County Solid Waste Transfer 

Station 
Location: State Roads S-12-44 and S-12-347, 

Chester, SC 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 580, Chester, SC 29706 
County: Berkeley 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 121001-6001 
Violations Cited:   South Carolina Solid Waste Policy 
and Management Act of 1991 (Rev. 2002), Solid Waste Management: 
Transfer of Solid Waste Regulation 61-107.7, Sections C.2. and F.2., 3., 
and 7.; and, Pollution Control Act (Rev.2008) Section 48-1-90(a).  

 
Summary:  Chester County (Respondent) performs solid waste transfer 

operations at the Facility in Chester, South Carolina.  The Respondent failed to 
address significant drainage issues at the Facility that allowed a discharge of 
leachate from the pit, in violation of the Solid Waste Management:  Transfer of 
Solid Waste which prohibits discharge of leachate into the environment, and the 
Pollution Control Act, which prohibits direct or indirect discharge of waste to the 
environment.  

 
Action:  The Order requires the Respondent to: repair the drain in the pit 

area and clean the drainage trenches so that all floors will be free from standing 
water and the Facility will maintain a neat and orderly appearance, and pay a civil 
penalty in the amount of three thousand, two hundred dollars ($3,200.00). 

 
 
 

BUREAU OF WATER 
 

Drinking Water Enforcement 
 
 

3) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-032-DW 
Order Date: September 7, 2011 



Respondent: Mid America Apartment  
 Communities, Inc. 
Facility: The Colony at South Park  
 Apartments 
Location: 101 Greengate Circle  
 Aiken, SC 29803 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Aiken 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 02-084-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J) 

 
Summary:  Mid America Apartment Communities, Inc. (Respondent) 

owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a spa.  The 
Respondent has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the 
bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis and the 
chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  correct the deficiencies and pay a 

civil penalty in the amount of one thousand twenty dollars ($1,020.00).   
 

 
4) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-033-DW 

Order Date: September 1, 2011 
Respondent: Prammish, LLC 
Facility: Holiday Inn 
Location: 139 Bradford Blvd. 
 Santee, SC 29142 
Mailing Address: 2816 Paxville Hwy 
 Manning, SC 29102 
County: Orangeburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 38-1004B/38-1005D 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  Prammish, LLC (Respondent) owns and is responsible for the 

proper operation and maintenance of a pool and spa.  The Respondent has 
violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the pH level was not 
within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the chlorine level was not 
within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the emergency telephone 
was not operating; the flow meter was broken; and the bound and numbered log 
book was not maintained on a daily basis.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  correct the deficiencies; contact 

the Department for re-inspection prior to reopening; and, pay a civil penalty in the 



amount of one thousand three hundred sixty dollars ($1,360.00).  The civil 
penalty has been paid. 

 
 

5) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-034-DW 
Order Date: September 1, 2011 
Respondent: Shiva Corporation 
Facility: Howard Johnson 
Location: 3608 St. Matthews Rd.  

Orangeburg, SC 29118 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Orangeburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 38-072-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J) 
 
Summary:  Shiva Corporation (Respondent) owns and is responsible for 

the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent has violated the 
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the gate did not self latch; the 
main drain was not visible; the shepherd’s crook was not the approved twelve foot 
size; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis; the 
chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the 
pH level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; and, 
there was no annual operating permit posted.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  properly operate and maintain the 

pool and pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred sixty dollars ($560.00).  
The civil penalty has been paid. 

 
 

6) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-035-DW 
Order Date: September 1, 2011 
Respondent: Dexter Arms Apartments, LLC 
Facility: Dexter Arms Apartment Complex 
Location: 650 Silver Bluff Rd.  
 Aiken, SC 29803 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Aiken 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 02-032-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J) and 
61-51(K)(1)(c) 

 
Summary:  Dexter Arms Apartments, LLC (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the depth 



markers were missing the FT tiles; the pool rules sign was not the current 
approved sign; the pool wall and floor were not clean; the gate did not self latch; 
the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; 
the skimmer had chlorine sticks in it; and, the Respondent reopened the pool prior 
to contacting the Department for re-inspection.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  correct the deficiencies; contact 

the Department for re-inspection prior to reopening; and, pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of seven hundred dollars ($700.00).  The civil penalty has been paid. 

 
 
7) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-036-DW 

Order Date: September 23, 2011 
Respondent: Woodside Golf, LLC 
Facility: The Reserve Club at Woodside  
 Plantation 
Location: 3000 Reserve Club Dr.  
 Aiken, SC 29803 
Mailing Address: 1419 Silver Bluff Rd. 
 Aiken, SC 29803 
County: Aiken 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 02-1008C 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J) and  
61-51(K)(1)(c) 

 
Summary:  Woodside Golf, LLC (Respondent) owns and is responsible 

for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent has violated 
the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the chlorine level was not 
within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the cyanuric acid level was 
above the water quality standards acceptable limit; the pH level was not within 
the acceptable range of water quality standards; and, the Respondent reopened the 
pool prior to contacting the Department for re-inspection.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  correct the deficiencies; contact 

the Department for re-inspection prior to reopening; and, pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of nine hundred forty dollars ($940.00).  The civil penalty has been paid.   

 
 
8) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-037-DW 

Order Date: September 23, 2011 
Respondent: Naman Orangeburg, LLC 
Facility: Hampton Inn 
Location: 663 Citadel Rd.  
 Orangeburg, SC 29115 
Mailing Address: PO Box 4540 



 Florence, SC 29502 
County: Orangeburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 38-066-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J) and 
61-51(K)(1)(c) 

 
Summary:  Naman Orangeburg, LLC (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the pH level was 
not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the chlorine level was 
not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the emergency 
telephone was not operating, the pool rules sign was not filled in; the bound and 
numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis; the cyanuric acid level 
was above the water quality standards acceptable limit; and, the Respondent 
reopened the pool prior to contacting the Department for re-inspection. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  correct the deficiencies; contact 

the Department for re-inspection prior to reopening; and, pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of eight hundred forty dollars ($840.00).  The civil penalty has been paid. 

 
 
9) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-038-DW 

Order Date: September 23, 2011 
Respondent: PARC Myrtle Waves, LLC 
Facility: Myrtle Waves 
Location: 3000 10th Ave North 

Myrtle Beach, SC 29577 
Mailing Address: 1820 21st Ave North 

Myrtle Beach, SC 29577 
County: Horry 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 38-066-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  
 
Summary:  PARC Myrtle Waves, LLC (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the chlorine level 
was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the pH level was 
not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the bound and 
numbered log book was not the approved log book; and, the automatic 
controller’s pressure switch had been removed.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  correct the deficiencies and pay a 

civil penalty in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).  The civil 
penalty has been paid. 



 
10) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-039-DW 

Order Date: September 23, 2011 
Respondent: Canebrake Homes Association, 
 Inc. 
Facility: Canebrake Subdivision 
Location: 101 Kings Mountain Drive 

Greer, SC 29650 
Mailing Address: 108 DeKalb Drive, Greer, SC 29650 
County: Greenville 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 23-177-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  Canebrake Homes Association, Inc. (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  there were 
chlorine sticks in the skimmer baskets; the weirs were either broken or missing; 
the gate did not self latch; and, the chemical room was not secure and did not 
have forced ventilation. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 
and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies and pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of three hundred forty dollars ($340.00).  The civil penalty has been 
paid. 
 
 
11) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-040-DW 

Order Date: September 22, 2011 
Respondent: Bent Oak Apartments, LLC 
Facility: Bent Oak Apartments 
Location: 200 Old Boiling Springs Road 

Greer, SC 29650 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Greenville 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 23-202-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  Bent Oak Apartments, LLC (Respondent) owns and is 

responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the handrail was 
not secure; the chlorine level was not within the water quality standards 
acceptable range; the cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards 
acceptable limit; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily 



basis; the Pool Rules sign was incomplete; and, the Pool Operator of Record 
information was not posted. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 

and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies and pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00). 

 
 
12) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-041-DW 

Order Date: September 22, 2011 
Respondent Patton Development Company,  
 Inc. 
Facility: Dollar General Store 
Location: 7053 Highlands Hwy 
 Mountain Rest, SC 29664 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2929 
 Spartanburg, SC 29304 
County: Oconee 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 3770935 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.1(K) 
 
Summary:  Patton Development Company, Inc. (Respondent) is 

responsible for constructing and placing into operation a public water system.  
The Respondent has violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations for 
failure to obtain written approval to operate prior to placing the new public supply 
well and appurtenances into operation.   

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  pay a civil penalty in the amount 

of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00). 
 
 

13) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-042-DW 
Order Date: September 22, 2011 
Respondent: El-Ad Verandas on the Green 
Facility: Verandas on the Green 
Location: 101 Fairway Ridge  
 Aiken, SC 29803 
Mailing Address: 1515 Federal Hwy.  
 Boca Raton, FL 33432 
County: Aiken 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 02-055-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 



Summary:  El-Ad Verandas on the Green (Respondent) owns and is 
responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the depth 
markers did not meet regulation standards; the gate did not self latch; the pool 
rules sign was not completely filled out; the Pool Operator of Record information 
was not posted; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily 
basis; and, there were chlorine sticks in the skimmers. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  submit a corrective action plan 

and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies and pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00).  The civil penalty has been 
paid. 

 
 
14) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-043-DW 

Order Date: September 22, 2011 
Respondent: Clark & Co. 
Facility: Clarks Inn 
Location: 114 Bradford Blvd.  
 Santee, SC 29142 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 99  
 Santee, SC 29142 
County: Orangeburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 38-071-1 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)  

 
Summary:  Clark & Co. (Respondent) owns and is responsible for the 

proper operation and maintenance of a pool.  The Respondent has violated the 
Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows:  the gate did not self latch; the 
cyanuric acid level was above the water quality standards acceptable limit; the 
United States Coast Guard approved life ring did not have a permanently attached 
rope; the “Shallow Water – No Diving” signs were not the regulated size; the 
chlorine level was above the water quality standards acceptable range; and, the 
bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to:  properly operate and maintain the 
pool and pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand five hundred thirty 
dollars ($1,530.00). 
 

 
Water Pollution Enforcement 

 
 

15) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-031-W 
Order Date: September 12, 2011 



Respondent: Sunset Holdings, LLC 
Facility: Satellite Sewer System  
Location: Rocky Branch Road & Hwy. 9 
 Boiling Springs, SC 29316 
Mailing Address: 1061 Altamont Road 
 Greenville, SC 29609 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: SSS000848 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. §48-1-90(a)(2008); 
24 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-67.300, C. (Supp. 2010). 

 
Summary:  Sunset Holdings, LLC (Respondent) owns and is responsible 

for the proper operation and maintenance of a Satellite Sewer System (SSS), 
serving the employees and customers of a strip mall located in Boiling Springs, 
South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the Pollution Control Act and Water 
Pollution Control Permits Regulation as follows: sanitary sewer overflows (SSO) 
from the wastewater collection system occurred at the Rocky Creek pump station 
(P/S) and entered into Rocky Branch Creek.  Subsequent Department inspections 
identified deficiencies associated with the operation and maintenance of the P/S.   

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to:  initiate a construction project to 

interconnect its collection system to the Spartanburg Sanitary Sewer District 
(SSSD) via a gravity sewer line, and the SSSD will assume ownership and 
maintenance responsibility of the collection system; pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of two thousand dollars ($2,000.00); and, pay a suspended and stipulated 
penalty of eight thousand eight hundred dollars ($8,800.00) pending compliance 
with the Order construction schedule.   

 
  

16) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-032-W 
Order Date: September 9, 2011 
Respondent:    City of Manning 
Facility: Manning WWTP   
Location:    One Wastewater Lane 
 Manning, SC 29102 
Mailing Address: 29 W Boyce St 
 Manning, SC 29102 
County: Clarendon  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number:   SC0020419 

                        Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann.§ 48-1-110(d)              
(2008), S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-9.122.21(d)(1) (Supp. 2010). 

 
Summary:  The City of Manning (Respondent) owns and is responsible for 

the proper operation and maintenance of a wastewater treatment plant located in 



Clarendon County, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the Pollution 
Control Act and Water Pollution Control Permits Regulation as follows: failed to 
submit an administratively complete application for renewal of its National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit at least one hundred 
eighty (180) days prior to the expiration date of the permit. 

 
  Action:  The Respondent is required to:  continue to operate the facility in 
accordance with the most recently issued NPDES permit until a new permit 
becomes effective; submit the NPDES Permit application; and, pay a civil penalty 
in the amount of five hundred dollars ($500.00). 

 
 
17) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-033-W 

Order Date: September 16, 2011 
Respondent: High Hills Rural Water Company, 

Inc. 
Facility: Harwood MHP WWTF 
Location: 2720 Peach Orchard Road 
 Dalzell, S.C. 29040 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Sumter  
Previous Orders: 10-041-W ($4,000.00 + $1,000.00                                                   

Stipulated for future reporting 
violations) 

Permit/ID Number: SC0031704 
Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C. Code 
Ann. § 48-1-110 (d) (2008) and Water Pollution Control Permits, 24 S.C. 
Code Ann. Regs. 61-9.122.21(d)(2) (Supp. 2010) 

 
Summary:  High Hills Rural Water Company, Inc. (Respondent), located 

in Sumter, South Carolina, owns and is responsible for the proper operation and 
maintenance of a wastewater treatment facility (WWTF).  The Respondent has 
violated the Pollution Control Act and Water Pollution Control Permits 
Regulation as follows:  failed to submit an administratively complete application 
for the renewal of its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
Permit. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: submit an administrative and 

technically complete application for renewal of its NPDES Permit; properly 
operate and maintain the WWTF in accordance with the most recently issued 
NPDES Permit; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand four 
hundred dollars ($1,400.00).  

 
 

18) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-034-W 
Order Date: September 22, 2011 



Respondent: Phibro-Tech, Inc. 
Facility: Phibro-Tech, Inc.  
Location: 2395 Cains Mill Road 
 Sumter, S.C. 29154 
Mailing Address: 65 Challenger Road, Third Floor 
 Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660-2103 
County: Sumter  
Previous Orders: None   
Permit/ID Number: SC0034860 
Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C. Code 
Ann. § 48-1-110 (d) (2008) and Water Pollution Control Permits, 24 S.C. 
Code Ann. Regs. 61-9.122.21(d)(2) (Supp. 2010) 

 
Summary:  Phibro-Tech, Inc. (Respondent), located in Ridgefield Park, 

New Jersey, owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of 
a storm water discharge system that serves its industrial facility located in Sumter 
County, South Carolina.  The Respondent has violated the Pollution Control Act 
and Water Pollution Control Permits Regulation as follows:  failed to submit an 
administratively and technically complete application for the renewal of its 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: submit an administrative and 

technically complete application for renewal of its NPDES Permit; properly 
operate and maintain the WWTF in accordance with the most recently issued 
NPDES Permit; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand five 
hundred dollars ($1,500.00).  

 
 

BUREAU OF AIR QUALITY 
 
 

 19) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 11-39-A 
Order Date: September 1, 2011 
Respondent: McEntire Produce, Inc. 
Facility: McEntire Produce, Inc. 
Location: 2040 American Italian Way, 

Columbia, SC 29209 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Richland 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: N/A 
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA Regulation at 40 CFR Part 
68 and 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.68 (Supp. 2010), Sections 15, 25, 
28, 30, 33, 39, 67, 79, 83, and 195. 

 



Summary: McEntire Produce, Inc. (Respondent), located in Columbia, 
South Carolina, processes, packs, and sells fresh produce.  The Respondent 
violated U.S. EPA Regulations at 40 CFR and South Carolina Air Pollution 
Control Regulations as follows:  failed to develop and implement a management 
system to oversee the implementation of the risk management program elements; 
failed to analyze the applicable worst-case release scenario for each regulated 
process; failed to analyze the applicable alternative release scenario for each 
regulated process; failed to define and estimate the population  and environmental 
receptors that would be impacted by an offsite release; failed to maintain 
documentation of offsite consequence analyses performed for worst-case and 
alternative release scenarios; failed to promptly address findings and 
recommendations of the process hazard analysis; failed to perform a compliance 
audit and certify that it evaluated its compliance with the applicable provisions of 
regulations; failed to develop a written plan of action regarding the 
implementation of employee participation; and, failed to submit the required 
emergency contact information within one month of changing the contact 
information.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: comply with all applicable 

requirements of the Federal and State regulations; and, pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of thirteen thousand five hundred dollars ($13,500.00).     

 
 

20) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 11-040-A 
Order Date: September 7, 2011 
Respondent: Odermath (USA) Inc. 
Facility: Odermath (USA) Inc. 
Location: 2751 New Cut Rd. Spartanburg, SC 

29303 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 2060-0501 
Violations Cited:   24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, 
Sections II.A.1.b., II.A.3., II.F.1., II.F.2., and II.F.3.b. 

 
Summary: Odermath (USA) Inc. (Respondent) owns and operates a 

facility, located in Spartanburg, South Carolina, that manufactures cored-wire 
products.  On June 29, 2010, the Department issued Construction Permit 2060-
0501-CA (Permit CA) to the Respondent.  The Respondent violated Permit CA 
and South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations as follows: failure to obtain 
a construction permit prior to altering a source of air contaminants, specifically, 
ceased operation of its automated bag/splitter dump process and began manual 
unloading of raw materials from bags into feed hoppers; failure to submit written 
notifications of the date construction was commenced and actual date of initial 
startup of each source installed under permit CA; failure to submit a written 



request for an operating permit to cover sources installed under Permit CA; failure 
to certify that the construction under application had been completed in 
accordance with the specifications agreed upon in Permit CA; failure to determine 
operational ranges, and maintain monitoring parameter readings and inspection 
checks for its baghouses; and, failure to record maintenance events for its cored-
wire process. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: obtain permits prior to 

constructing, operating, altering or adding to a source of air contaminants; submit 
written notifications of the dates construction was commenced and initial startup 
began for any new or altered sources; certify that the construction under 
application has been completed in accordance with the specifications agreed upon 
in its construction permits; determine and maintain operational ranges, and 
maintain monitoring parameter readings and inspection checks for its baghouses; 
record maintenance events for its cored-wire manufacturing process; and, pay a 
civil penalty in the amount of nine thousand six hundred dollars ($9,600.00). 

 
 

21) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 11-041-A 
Order Date: September 7, 2011 
Respondent: Reflective Recycling of SC LLC 
Facility: Reflective Recycling of SC LLC 
Location: 520 Calico Drive, Pacolet, SC 29372 
Mailing Address: Same 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: 10-016-A ($20,000.00) 
Permit/ID Number: 2060-0501 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d) and 
Consent Order 10-016-A  

 
Summary:  Reflective Recycling of SC LLC (Respondent) owns and 

operates a facility that recycles glass, and is located in Pacolet, South Carolina.  
The Department issued Conditional Major Air Quality Operating Permit CM-
2060-0025 (“Operating Permit”) to the Respondent, effective October 1, 2004.  
The Respondent violated its Operating Permit and Consent Order 10-016-A as 
follows: failure to record liquid flow rate and inspection checks for its scrubber; 
failure to record pressure drop readings daily for its baghouse during source 
operation; failure to submit semiannual reports of incidences outside of the 
operational ranges (or a letter indicating no such incidences occurred); and failure 
to submit an annual report of sulfur dioxide (SO2) emissions. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: record liquid flow rate and 

inspection checks for its scrubbers: take corrective action for incidences outside 
of the operational ranges of its scrubbers; record pressure drop readings daily for 
its baghouses during source operation; submit timely semiannual reports of 
incidences outside of the operational ranges (or letters indicating that no such 



incidences occurred); submit timely annual reports of SO2 emissions; and pay a 
civil penalty in the amount of twelve thousand dollars ($12,000.00) in four equal 
payments. 

 
   

22) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 11-042-A 
Order Date: September 16, 2011 
Respondent: Lincoln Oil Co., Inc. d.b.a Lincoln 

Energy Solutions 
Facility: Lincoln Energy Solutions 
Location:    Highway 20 North, Belton, SC 
Mailing Address: 22 South Main Street, Greenville, SC 

29601 
County: Anderson 
Previous Orders: 09-069-A ($24,500.00) 
Permit/ID Number: CM-0200-0206 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Section 48-1-110(d) 
and 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regulations 61-62.1, Section IV, Source Tests 

 
 Summary: Lincoln Oil Co., Inc. d.b.a. Lincoln Energy Solutions 
(Respondent), owns and operates an ethanol distribution facility in Belton, South 
Carolina.  The Department issued Conditional Major Air Quality Permit 0200-
0206 (“Permit”) to the Respondent, effective July 1, 2010.  The Respondent 
violated the Pollution Control Act and South Carolina Air Pollution Control 
Regulations as follows: failed to achieve and maintain the permitted destruction 
removal efficiency (DRE) of 98% for its vapor combustion unit (VCU); failed to 
maintain records of monthly volatile organic compounds (VOC) and hazardous 
air pollutants (HAP) emission calculations and twelve month rolling sum; failed 
to document each incidence of operation outside the operational ranges; failed to 
operate the VCU in a manner consistent with its permit; and failed to submit a 
timely written report of final source test results to the Department. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to: achieve and maintain the required 
DRE for the VCU; conduct a Department approved source test on the VCU; 
maintain VOC and HAP emission calculations on a monthly basis and twelve 
month rolling sum; document each incidence of operation outside the approved 
operational ranges; henceforth operate the VCU in a manner consistent with the 
permit; and pay a civil penalty in the amount of ($14,000.00).  

 
 

23) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 11-043-A 
Order Date: September 7, 2011 
Respondent: American Yuncheng Gravure 

Cylinder, Inc.  
Facility: American Yuncheng Gravure 

Cylinder, Inc. 



Location: 150 Ian Court, Spartanburg, SC 
29306 

Mailing Address: Same 
County: Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: 2060-0468 
Violations Cited:   U.S. EPA 40 CFR 63.342(c)(1)(i), 
63.342(c)(1)(iii), 63.343(c), 63.343(c)(2), and 63.7(a)(2)(ix);  24A S.C. 
Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.63 - Subpart N and Subpart A; and 24A S.C. Code 
Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, Section II.A.4. and Section II.C.3(f). 

 
Summary:  American Yuncheng Gravure Cylinder, Inc. (Respondent), 

owns and operates a facility that chrome-plates steel cylinders for use in the 
printing industry, and is located in Spartanburg, South Carolina.  On April 22, 
2008, the Department issued Construction Permit 2060-0486-CA (Permit CA) to 
the Respondent.  The Respondent violated Permit CA, and U.S. EPA Regulations 
at 40 CFR and South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations as follows: 
failure to conduct an initial performance test within 180 days after the startup of 
the source; failure to establish site-specific operating parameters for pressure drop 
across the system and velocity pressure at the common inlet of the control device; 
failure to limit the concentration of total chromium discharged to the atmosphere 
to 0.015 milligrams per dry standard cubic meter; failure to limit the surface 
tension of the electroplating bath to 35 dynes/cm as measured by a tensiometer; 
and failure to provide, in its construction permit application, an accurate detailed 
description of the facility’s proposed new process. 

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: obtain permits prior to 

constructing, operating, altering or adding to a source of air contaminants; 
conduct performance tests within the specified time frame and in accordance with 
EPA and State regulations; limit the surface tension of the electroplating bath to 
either 45 dynes/cm as measured by a stalagmometer or 35 dynes/cm as measured 
by a tensiometer; and pay a civil penalty in the amount of eighteen thousand five 
hundred dollars ($18,500.00). 

 
 

24) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 11-044-A 
Order Date: September 9, 2011 
Respondent: South Carolina Public Service 

Authority 
Facility: Santee Cooper – Cross Generating 

Station 
Location:    553 Cross Station Road 

Pineville, SC 29468 
Mailing Address:   PO Box 2946101 

       Moncks Corner, SC 29461 
County: Berkeley 



Previous Orders: 10-026-A ($47,500.00) 
Permit/ID Number: TV-0420-0030 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-90(a)  

 
Summary:  South Carolina Public Service Authority, also known as Santee 

Cooper (Respondent), is a state-owned electric utility.  The Department issued 
Part 70 (Title V) Air Quality Operating Permit TV-0420-0030 to the Respondent, 
effective    January 1, 2007, and last revised February 23, 2011. The Respondent 
violated its Permit in that exceeded the particulate matter (PM) emission limit 
from its unit 4 Boiler during a Department-approved source test.  

 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: comply with the PM emission 

limits established in the Title V Permit; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00).   

 
 
25) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 11-045-A 

Order Date: September 7, 2011 
Respondent: Shaw Industries Group, Inc. 
Facility: Shaw Industries Group, Inc. 
Location: 136 E Frontage Road, Aiken, SC  

29802 
Mailing Address: PO Box 2128 WD-53, Dalton, GA  

30722- 2128 
County: Aiken 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: CM-0080-0101 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Section 48-1-110(d) 

 
Summary:  Shaw Industries Group, Inc. (Respondent) operates a Nylon 6 

yarn manufacturing facility in Aiken, South Carolina.  The Department issued 
Conditional Major Air Quality Permit 0080-0101 (Permit) to the Respondent 
effective April 1, 2004.  The Permit expired on March 31, 2009; however, the 
Department received a timely request for renewal from the Respondent of its 
Permit on January 12, 2009.  The Respondent violated the Permit for failed to 
achieve the permitted removal efficiency of greater than or equal to 50% of 
volatile organic compound emissions (VOC) for a wet scrubber (ID WS2). 
 
 Action:  The Respondent is required to: comply with the removal 
efficiency requirements contained in its Department-issued construction and/or 
operating permit; and within 30 days of the execution date of the Order, pay a 
civil penalty in the amount of three thousand two hundred dollars ($3,200.00). 

 
 

26) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 11-046-A 
Order Date: September 16, 2011 



Respondent: Milliken & Company 
Facility: Milliken & Company Pendleton 

Plant 
Location: 200 Excelsior Rd., Pendleton, SC  

29670 
Mailing Address:   Same 
County: Anderson 
Previous Orders: None 
Permit/ID Number: TV-0200-0011 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. 48-1-90 (a) and 24A 
S.C. Code Ann. Regulation 61-62.5, Standard No. 1-Emissions from Fuel 
Burning Operations  

 
 Summary:  Milliken & Company (Respondent) owns and operates a 
dyeing and finishing operation for polyester fabrics in Pendleton, South Carolina.  
The Department issued Part 70 (Title V) Air Quality Operating Permit 0200-0011 
(“Permit”) to the Respondent, effective October 1, 2006.  The Respondent 
violated the Permit and South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations for 
exceeding the particulate matter (PM) emissions limit of 0.60 lb/mmBtu for its 
boiler during a September 23, 2010, Department-approved source test. 

 
 Action:  The Respondent is required to: comply with the applicable PM 
emissions limit as required by the permit; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
six thousand eight hundred dollars ($6,800.00).  

 
 
27) Order Type and Number:             Consent Order 11-049-A 

Order Date:    September 29, 2011 
Respondent: SantoLubes Manufacturing LLC 

d.b.a. Blackman Uhler Specialties 
Facility: SantoLubes Manufacturing LLC 

d.b.a. Blackman Uhler Specialties 
Location: 2155 W. Croft Cir. Spartanburg, SC 

29304 
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 5627, Spartanburg, SC 

29304 
County:    Spartanburg 
Previous Orders: 10-059-A ($5,600.00), 10-036-A 

($4,000.00) 
Permit/ID Number:   2060-0029 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d); 
Consent Order 10-036-A; and 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs.61-62.1, 
Sections II.A.1.b., II.A.3., II.A.4., and II.F.1. 

 
Summary:  SantoLubes Manufacturing LLC d.b.a. Blackman Uhler 

Specialties (Respondent), manufactures specialty organic chemicals, and is 



located in Spartanburg, South Carolina.  The Department issued Conditional 
Major Air Quality Operating Permit 2060-0029-CM (Operating Permit) to the 
Respondent, effective July 1, 2009.  The Respondent violated the Operating 
Permit, Consent Order 10-036-A, and South Carolina Air Pollution Control 
Regulations as follows: failure to maintain records of operation and maintenance 
(O&M) inspection checks; failure to obtain a construction permit prior to 
commencing construction of two reactors and two storage tanks; failure to submit 
a semiannual report of incidences outside of the operational ranges; and, failure to 
submit written notifications of the date construction was commenced and the 
actual date of initial startup for each of the reactors and tanks. 
 

Action:  The Respondent is required to: maintain records of O&M checks 
in logs; submit semiannual reports of incidences outside of the operational ranges 
and include all required information; obtain permits prior to constructing, 
operating, altering or adding to a source of air contaminants; submit written 
notifications of the date construction was commenced and the actual date of initial 
startup of each new or altered source; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
seven thousand eight hundred dollars ($7,800.00). 

 
 
28) Order Type and Number:  Consent Order 11-050-A 

Order Date:    September 29, 2011 
Respondent: Suminoe Textile of America 

Corporation 
Facility: Suminoe Textile of America 

Corporation 
Location: 10 Commerce Drive, Gaffney, SC 

29340 
Mailing Address: Same 
County:    Cherokee 
Previous Orders: 08-019-A ($5,500.00) 
Permit/ID Number:   0600-0088 
Violations Cited:   S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d), 
Consent Order 08-019-A, and 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.5, 
Standard No. 1, Section I.A.C. 

 
Summary:  Suminoe Textile of America Corporation (Respondent) owns 

and operates a facility that manufactures automotive textile materials such as door 
panels, headliners, and flooring, and is located in Gaffney, South Carolina.  On 
August 11, 2009, the Department issued Air Quality Operating Permit 0600-0088 
(Operating Permit) to the Respondent.  The Respondent violated its Operating 
Permit, Consent Order 08-019-A, and South Carolina Air Pollution Control 
Regulations as follows: failure to maintain a log of operation and maintenance 
(O&M) checks; and, failure to maintain a log of the time, magnitude, duration and 
any other pertinent information to determine periods of startup and shutdown for 
its boilers. 



 
Action:  The Respondent is required to: maintain a complete log of O&M 

checks for its fabric filters and dust collection hoppers; maintain a complete log of 
the time, magnitude, duration and any other pertinent information to determine 
periods of startup and shutdown for its boilers; and, pay a civil penalty in the 
amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00). 
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